
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Venue: Rotherham Town Hall, 

Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham.  S60 2TH 

Date: Wednesday 11 January 2023 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 

Meetings of the Licensing Sub-Committee can be viewed by live webcast by following this 
link:- https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1. To determine whether the following items should be considered under the 
categories suggested in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended 
March 2006) of the Local Government Act 1972.  

  

2. To determine any item(s) which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 
considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  

  

3. Consideration of an application made by Orzo Rotherham Ltd (in accordance 
with s.17 of the Licensing Act 2003) for the grant of a Premises Licence in 
respect of the premises known as Orza situated at 2/2a Doncaster Gate, 
Rotherham, S65 1DG (Pages 3 - 55) 

  

 

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


This page is intentionally left blank



Hearing Procedure  
 
1 The Chair of the Licensing Committee will introduce the Committee and 

ask officers to introduce themselves. 

 

2 The Chair will ask the applicants to formally introduce themselves. 
 
3 The Licensing Officer will outline the procedure to be followed at the 

hearing. 
 

4 Hearing Procedure:- 

 
i. The Licensing Officer will introduce the report. 

 
ii. Questions concerning the report can be asked both by Members and the 

applicant. 
 

iii. The applicant / licensee (or his/her nominated representative) will then be 
asked to:- 
 

a) detail the application; 

b) provide clarification on the application and respond to the 

representations made. 

 

iv. The applicant / licensee (or his/her nominated representative) may then be 
asked questions by members and with the leave of the Chair from the other 
parties present. 
 

v. The Licensing Officer will introduce in turn representatives for the 
Responsible Authority and Interested Parties who will be asked to detail their 
relevant representations. 
 

vi. Members may ask questions of those parties 
 

vii. With the leave of the Chair the applicant or his representative may ask 
questions of the representatives of the Responsible Authorities and 
Interested Parties. 
 

viii. The applicant will then be given the opportunity to sum up the application. 
The Licensing Officer will then detail the options. 
 

ix. There will then be a private session for members to take legal advice and 
consider the application. 

 
5 The decision of the Licensing Committee will be given in accordance with 

the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and regulations made there 
under. 
 

Notes: 

 At any time in the Licensing Process Members of the Committee may request 
legal advice from the Solicitor to the Committee. This advice may be given in 
open session or in private. 

 The Committee Hearing will be held in public unless and in accordance with 
the Regulations the Committee determine that the public should be excluded. 

  

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



 

 
Public Report 

Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
Committee Name and Date of Committee Meeting 
  
Licensing Sub-Committee – 11th January 2023 (10:00 am) 
 
Report Title 
 
Consideration of an application made by Orzo Rotherham Ltd (in accordance with s.17 
of the Licensing Act 2003) for the grant of a Premises Licence in respect of the 
premises known as Orza situated at 2/2a Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG. 
 
Report Author 
 
Diane Kraus, Principal Licensing Officer, Community Safety and Street Scene 
Telephone 01709 289536.  
 
Report Summary 
 
On the 8th November 2022 an application was made by Orzo Rotherham Ltd for the 
grant of a Premises Licence in respect of the premises known as Orza situated at 2/2a 
Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG.  
 
On 13th December 2022 the application was amended so as to remove the requested 
extended hours on occasions when “pre-booked events” were held at the premises.  
 
Representations to the application, as amended, are continuing to be made by the 
Licensing Authority, the Police, the Council’s Environmental Health Service, a local 
Ward Councillors and two local residents.   
 
Further details on the application, as amended, and the representations can be found 
within the body of this report.    
    
Recommendations 
 

1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee considers the information contained within 

this report (and associated appendices) along with any additional information 

presented at the hearing and subsequently determines the application that has 

been made. 

 

2. The Licensing Sub-Committee should inform the Licensing Manager of the 

decision in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and 

Regulations made thereunder.  

 
 

Page 4



 
List of Appendices Included 
 
Appendix 1  Location details   
Appendix 2 Premises layout plan  
Appendix 3 Application, as amended, under consideration  
Appendix 4 Representations. 
  
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Rotherham MBC Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 -2025  
(Available at www.rotherham.gov.uk/licensing) 
 
Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) 
(available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-
revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003) 
 
 
Council Approval Required 
 
No 
 
Exempt from the Press and Public 
 
No 
 

Page 5

http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/licensing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003


Consideration of an application made by Orzo Rotherham Ltd (in accordance 
with s.17 of the Licensing Act 2003) for the grant of a Premises Licence in 
respect of the premises known as Orza situated at 2/2a Doncaster Gate, 
Rotherham, S65 1DG  
 
 
1. Background 
  
1.1 The premises located at 2/2a Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG have 

previously had the benefit of a Premises Licence issued under the Licensing Act 
2005. A Licence was in force between July 2005 and June 2015. During this 
period the premises were known as “Disraeli’s 2” and from May 2010 onwards 
“The Towngate”.  This Licence was surrendered June 2015.   

 
1.2 A further Premises Licence was in force between March 2021 and July 2022 

when the Licence was suspended for non-payment of fees and subsequently 
lapsed. Whilst during this period the premises were known as “La Orza”, neither 
the current applicant Company or Mr Jozef Gazi held the Licence.   

 

 

2. Key Issues 
 

Location of the Premises 
 

2.1 Attached at Appendix 1 to the report are plans showing the location of applicant 
premises.  
 
The Initial Application 
 

2.2 On 8th November 2022 an application was made by Orzo Rotherham Ltd for the 
grant of a Premises Licence in respect of the premises known as Orza situated 
at 2/2a Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG.   

 
2.3 Initially the applicant sought consent to allow the sale of alcohol at the premises 

between 11am and 9.30pm on every day of the week, with an unlimited extension 
of the terminal hour to 1.30am on the following day when the premises were in 
use for “pre-booked events”. Consent was also sought to allow live music from 
11pm and to 1.30am on the day following, and to allow recorded and provide late 
night refreshment from 11pm to 2am on the day following, when the premises 
were in use for “pre-booked events”. 

 

The Applicant Company 
 

2.4 The application is made in the name of Orzo Rotherham Ltd. Companies House 
records show that this Company was incorporated on 27th October 2022 and has 
one Director, Mr Jozef Gazi. In addition, Mr Gazi is listed as the person with 
significant control of the Company.  
 
 
 

  

Page 6



The Premises 
 

2.5 The description of the premises, as provided in the application is as follows: 
 

Established 3 Storey restaurant situated in town centre. On the ground floor, the 
premises has a large open area for seating (for approximately 40 Covers), a bar and 
a snug area. There is also a smaller kitchen area to the rear. Up the first flight of stairs 
(mezzanine area) there is a function room which can seat up to 40 covers and up a 
further flight of stairs up to a second dining area that can accommodate up to 80 
people. Disabled toilets are located on the ground floor and male and female toilets 
are situated on the first floor. There is also a lift operating directly from the ground to 
the first floor. 

 
2.6 The plan, which accompanied the application and shows the layout of the 

premises is attached at Appendix 2. 
 

   Consultation 
 
2.7 Consultation on the application was carried out in accordance with statutory 

requirements and the Council’s procedure. There is a prescribed period of 28 
days following the submission of an application during which time 
representations in relation to the application may be submitted.  

 
2.8 At the end of the prescribed period six parties had made representations, all of 

whom were opposed to the application.  
 

2.9 The applicant was provided with the detail of the representations and, following 
this, on 13th December 2022 formally amended the application so as to remove 
the requested extended hours on occasions when “pre-booked events” were held 
at the premises.  

 

Application (as amended) Under Consideration 

 

2.10 A copy of the application, as amended, is attached at Appendix 3.  
 

2.11 The application under consideration seeks consent to allow the retail sale of 

alcohol at the premises between 11am and 9.30pm on every day of the week, 

with the premises closing to the public at 10pm. 

 

2.12 The application is not seeking consent to allow the provision of regulated 

entertainment at the premises. However, it is important to note that there are a 

number of exemptions that allow live and recorded music to be provided without 

the benefit of a licence. The full detail of these exemptions is set out in 

paragraphs 2.22 to 2.28 below. In addition paragraphs 3.17 to 3.22 provide 

information regarding the suspension of conditions when exempt entertainment 

is being provided. 

  

Page 7



2.13 Any Licence granted would be subject to the conditions offered in the operating 

schedule, which forms part of the application. The offered conditions are:   

 

I. The premises shall install and maintain a CCTV system. Cameras will be 

positioned on all floors, at the front exterior and all entrance and exit doors.  

II. The CCTV system shall have sufficient hard drive storage capacity to store a 

minimum of 31 days and to continually record when the premises is open for 

licensable activities.  

III. The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition images 

and a clear head and shoulders image of every person entering the premises at 

each entrance point.  

IV. A CCTV log will be completed on a weekly basis to record all elements of the 

CCTV System is maintained in good working order and recordings date and time 

stamped.  

V. Only nominated staff shall be trained in the operation of the CCTV system to 

ensure rapid data retrieval & downloads of footage can be provided to the Police 

& the Local Authority Officer upon reasonable request in accordance with the 

Data Protection Act.  

VI. In the event of a failure of the CCTV system for any reason, a record of the failure 

will be recorded in the premises Incident log and immediate steps will be made 

to rectify the problem. 

VII. The DPS will provide training to staff in relation to alcohol sales in relation to the 

restrictions of 16 & 17 year old(s) 

VIII. An incident log shall be kept at the premises. Log records will be retained for a 

period of 12 months from the date it occurred. It will be made immediately 

available on request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the 

Licensing Act 2003), an authorised trading standards officer or the police, and 

must record the following:  

a. All crimes reported to the premises (where relevant to the licensing 

objectives) 

b. Any incidents of disorder on the premises or within the direct vicinity.  

IX. A written register of refusals will be operated. Such records shall be kept for a 

period of 12 months and the contents of the logbook will be made available for 

inspection to Local Authority officers and the police.  

X. For any pre booked events door supervisors registered with the SIA 

qualifications will be employed on such times and ratios following a risk 

assessment for each particular event. Such numbers will be sufficient and 

capable of controlling the customers on the venue. 

XI. All door supervisors will complete on the first engagement an in-house 

registration form. This form will be retained on the premises for a minimum of 12 

months.  

XII. All door supervisors will be easily identifiable by their outer clothing and their 

badges will be clearly visible at all times.  

XIII. The premises licence holder will operate a written Dispersal Policy whereby at 

the end of all events, the door supervisors (if employed) or a senior member of 

staff or both will observe the exterior of the premises to assist in the smooth 

dispersal of all customers from the venue to encourage customers to leave the 

area quickly, quietly and to help to disperse people gathering outside.  

Page 8



XIV. When the designated premises supervisor is not on duty, a contact telephone 

number will be available at all times. 

XV. All alcohol including spirits will be stored and sold behind the bar(s).  

XVI. There will be employed when required enough staff to collect glasses and bottles 

from around the premises during the event and bottle bins will be placed around 

the premises if necessary, depending on the event taking place.  

XVII. A written alcohol register containing all the names of all persons who are 

authorised to serve/sell alcohol on the premises will be completed and kept at 

the premises for a minimum of 12 months 

XVIII. All free-flowing alcoholic drinks will be dispensed into polycarbonate plastic 

glasses or shatterproof glass for consumption by customers. 

XIX. No customers apparently carrying open bottles upon entry shall not be admitted 

to the premises or any times the premises are open to the public. 

XX. Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premises in open 

containers save for consumption in any external area provided for that purpose.  

XXI. At least one door supervisor will be positioned near any stairway to monitor the 

customers safely during a large event.  

XXII. All lighting both internal and external will be of sufficient illumination for 

customers to safely navigate the building. 

XXIII. Prominent, clear and legible signage shall be displayed at the entrance and exit 

of the premises requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and 

to leave the premises and the area quickly and quietly.  

XXIV. The Management will provide a free telephone service for all non-residents and 

will have an agreement with a minimum of a local taxi companies that will agree 

to certain ‘quiet’ conditions when collecting customers at the end of the evening. 

These quiet conditions will ensure that all taxis vehicles will make the minimum 

noise possible and encourage customers to leave quickly and quietly. 

XXV. All customers will be encouraged to pre-book their taxi and to wait for their taxi 

inside the restaurant. 

XXVI. The Management will operate a Noise Assessment log book when any pre 

booked function is taking place and will endeavour to reduce the noise to an 

inaudible level at the nearest residence.  

XXVII. The Management will ensure that no extractor fan or exterior lighting will cause 

a nuisance to any local residence. 

XXVIII. The Management will operate an open-door policy whereby any nearby resident 

will be encouraged to report any matters of concern they have with the premises, 

regarding noise and noise nuisance. 

XXIX. All trade waste will be stored in lidded industrial bins. No glass bottles / waste 

will be disposed of between 20.00 and 08.00 on any day.  

XXX. All deliveries and collections of trade waste will only be carried out between 

08.00 and 20.00 on weekdays. 

XXXI. When an event is to be held that is likely to attract under 18’s, the premises 

licence holder will install, operate and maintain an identification and age 

verification system, for example, coloured wrist bands. 

XXXII. Proxy signs will be fitted near to all alcohol P.O.S positions warning people not 

to buy alcohol for children.  

XXXIII. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 policy. Such policy shall be written 

down and kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of the 

police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the licensing act 

2003) or an authorised trading standards officer the local authority/council.  

Page 9



XXXIV. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in Challenge 25. Training 

records shall be kept on the premises and produced to the police or an 

‘authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the licensing act 2003) or an 

authorised trading standards officer of the local authority/council on demand. 

XXXV. Prominent, clear, and legible Challenge 25 signage shall also be displayed at all 

entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any counter 

advertising the scheme operated. 

XXXVI. No adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment shall be 

provided or allowed at the premises. 

 

The Designated Premises Supervisor  

 

2.14 Miss Kvetoslava Janova, who is nominated on the application as the Designated 

Premises Supervisor (DPS), does not currently hold a Personal Licence and, at 

the time of writing, has yet to apply for one. Given this, the application is made 

without a nominated DPS.  

 

2.15 The applicant Company has been asked to provide an update on the status of 

the nominated DPS and an oral update regarding this will be provided at the 

hearing.  

Representations  

 

2.16 All parties making representations to the initial application were notified of the 

amendments to the application and are continuing with their representations.  

 

2.17 A copy of the ongoing representations, received from the Licensing Authority, 

Police, Council’s Environmental Health service, a Ward Councillor and two local 

residents, are attached at Appendix 4. 

 

2.18 Two sound recordings of the level of noise on emanating from the premises in 

during the summer of 2022, have been submitted in support on the 

representation made by a local resident. Both recordings will be played at the 

hearing.  

 

2.19 All parties making representations to the application have been invited to the 

hearing today and, if attending, will be given the opportunity to address the Sub-

Committee in relation to the matters raised in their representations.  

 

2.20 Members of the Sub-Committee should give full consideration of the issues 

raised in the representations when determining the application. 

  

Page 10



Additional Information  

2.21 Any additional relevant documentation received in support of the application or 
the representations prior to the date of the hearing will be circulated at the 
hearing. Documentation received on the day of the hearing may only be 
considered by the Licensing Sub Committee with the consent of all relevant 
parties. 

 
Important considerations in relation to Regulated Entertainment 

2.22 As there is a possibility that live and/or recorded music may be provided at the 

premises, it is important that the following information is brought to the attention 

of the Licensing Committee. 

 

2.23 There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other 

authorisation) under the 2003 Act is not required. The following activities are 

examples of entertainment which are not licensable:  

 

 Incidental music – the performance of live music or the playing of recorded 
music if it is incidental to some other activity (see below).  

 A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing.  

 Stand-up comedy. 
 
2.24 Whether or not music is “incidental” to another activity will depend on the facts 

of each case. In considering whether or not live or recorded music is incidental, 
one relevant factor could be whether, against a background of the other 
activities already taking place, the addition of music will create the potential to 
undermine the promotion of one or more of the four licensing objectives of the 
2003 Act. Other factors might include some or all of the following:  

 

 Is the music the main, or one of the main, reasons for people attending the 
premises and being charged?  

 Is the music advertised as the main attraction?  

 Does the volume of the music disrupt or predominate over other activities, 
or could it be described as ‘background’ music?  

 
2.25 In addition to the above, as a result of deregulatory changes that have amended 

the 2003 Act, no licence is required for the following activities:  

 

 Live music: no licence permission is required for:  
 

o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, on any premises.  

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on 
those premises. 

  

Page 11



o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, in a workplace that does not have a licence, provided that 
the audience does not exceed 500 (a workplace could include an 
external area to a licensed premises – for example a beer garden or 
other outdoor space provided for patrons to consume alcohol). 

 

 Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day 
on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those 
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

 

2.26 The deregulatory changes mean that, for example, a performance of live music 

taking place between 07.00 and 23.30 on a particular day is licensable in respect 

of activities taking place between 07.00-08.00 and 23.00-23.30. Similarly, where 

the audience for a performance of recorded music, those activities are licensable 

if, and for so long as, the number of people in the audience exceeds 500.  

 

2.27 Anyone involved in the organisation or provision of entertainment activities – 

whether or not any such activity is licensable under the 2003 Act – must comply 

with any applicable duties that may be imposed by other legislation relevant to 

the event (e.g. in areas such as crime and disorder, fire, health and safety, noise, 

nuisance and planning).  Any such person should take steps to be aware of 

relevant best practice and may find responsible authorities a useful source of 

expert support and advice.  

 

2.28 If the Licensing Committee grant the licence, and the licence includes permission 

for the retail sale of alcohol, then any live or recorded music taking place at the 

premises (subject to the above requirements) will not be licensable between the 

hours of 0800hrs and 2300hrs.  In addition, any conditions that are applied to live 

or recorded music will not be effective during these hours (subject to certain 

conditions being met).  Further detail in relation to conditions is contained within 

section 3 of this report. 

 

 

3. Options available to the Licensing Sub-Committee 
  
3.1 A licensing authority must carry out its functions under the Licensing Act with a 

view to promoting the licensing objectives: 

 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance 

 the protection of children from harm 

  

Page 12



3.2 In considering this matter, the Sub Committee should take into account any 

representations or objections that have been received from responsible 

authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or 

premises user as the case may be. In reaching the decision, regard must also 

be had to relevant provisions of the national guidance and the Council’s licensing 

policy statement.  In relation to this application, the options available to the Sub 

Committee are: 

 

a. To grant the licence subject to the conditions consistent with the operating 

schedule accompanying the application, which the Sub Committee may 

modify to such extent as they consider appropriate, together with any 

conditions the Sub Committee may decide to impose; and/or  

 

b. To reject the whole or part of the application (which may include the 

omission of certain licensable activities from the licence and / or the 

refusal to specify a particular individual as the Designated Premises 

Supervisor) 

3.3 The statutory guidance makes it clear that Licensing Authorities are best 

placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should be 

considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any 

representations or objections that have been received from responsible 

authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or 

premises user as the case may be.  

 

3.4 The Authorities Sub Committee   determination should be evidence-based, 

justified as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and 

proportionate to what it is intended to achieve.  

 

3.5 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion 

of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step 

would be suitable to achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a 

Licensing Authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the 

authority should aim to consider the potential burden that the condition would 

impose on the premises licence holder (such as the financial burden due to 

restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of 

the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the 

Authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination 

are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 

outside those parameters. The Licensing Authority should consider wider 

issues such as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative 

impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the track record of 

the business (if appropriate).  

 

Page 13



3.6 The Licensing Authority is expected to come to its determination based on an 

assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against 

making the determination.  Conditions may be placed on the licence (if 

granted) – further information in relation to conditions is provided later in this 

report.  

 

3.7 All licensing determinations should be considered on the individual merits of 

the application.  The Authority’s determination should be evidence-based, 

justified as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and 

proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. Findings on any issues of fact 

should be on the balance of probability. 

 

3.8 It is important that a Licensing Authority should give comprehensive reasons 

for its decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate 

reasons could itself give rise to grounds for an appeal. 

 

Conditions 

 

3.9 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or 

certificate and essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the 

premises licence will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to 

the carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to 

comply with any condition attached to a licence is a criminal offence, which 

on conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ 

imprisonment. The courts have made clear that it is particularly important that 

conditions which are imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe 

should be avoided.  

 

3.10 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or 

certificate: proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is 

described in more detail below.  

 

Proposed conditions  

 

3.11 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives should emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a 

prospective licence or certificate holder, which they should carry out before 

making their application for a premises licence or club premises certificate. 

This would be translated into the steps recorded in the operating schedule or 

club operating schedule, which must also set out the proposed hours during 

which licensable activities will be conducted and any other hours during which 

the premises will be open to the public.  

 

3.12 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording 

from an applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in 

accordance with the applicant’s intention.  

Page 14



Consistency with steps described in operating schedule  

 

3.13 The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule has been submitted 

with an application and there have been no relevant representations made by 

responsible authorities or any other person, the licence  must be granted 

subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule 

accompanying the application and any mandatory conditions required under 

the 2003 Act.  

 

3.14 Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the 

same as that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions 

are broken, this may lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a 

review and it is extremely important therefore that they should be expressed 

on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and unambiguous terms. The duty 

imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must be clear to the 

licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts.  

 

Imposed conditions  

 

3.15 The Licensing Authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion 

has been exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is 

satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not 

necessary) that it is appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more 

of the four licensing objectives. In order to promote the crime prevention 

licensing objective conditions may be included that are aimed at preventing 

illegal working in licensed premises.  

 

3.16 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate 

to promote the licensing objectives.  

 

Conditions relating specifically to live and recorded music 

 

3.17 Any existing licence conditions (or conditions added on a determination of an 

application for a premises licence) which relate to live music or recorded 

music remain in place, but are suspended between the hours of 08.00 and 

23.00 on the same day where the following conditions are met:  

 

 at the time of the music entertainment, the premises are open for the 

purposes of being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption 

on the premises;  

 if the music is amplified, it takes place before an audience of no more 

than 500 people; and  

 the music takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day.  

 

Page 15



3.18 Whether a licence condition relates to live or recorded music will be a matter 

of fact in each case. In some instances, it will be obvious that a condition 

relates to music and will be suspended, for example “during performances of 

live music all doors and windows must remain closed”. In other instances, it 

might not be so obvious: for example, a condition stating “during 

performances of regulated entertainment all doors and windows must remain 

closed” would be suspended insofar as it relates to music between 08.00 and 

23.00 on the same day to an audience of up to 500, but the condition would 

continue to apply if there was regulated entertainment after 23.00.  

 

3.19 More general licence conditions (e.g. those relating to overall management 

of potential noise nuisance) that are not specifically related to the provision 

of entertainment (e.g. signage asking patrons to leave quietly) will continue 

to have effect.  

 

3.20 Licence conditions imposed for live or recorded music activities will only apply 

if the activity meets the criteria of having more than 500 people present, and 

/ or the activities are taking place between 23.00 and 08.00.  

 

3.21 These conditions will, in effect, be suspended between 08.00 and 23.00 if a 

performance of live music or the playing of recorded music takes place before 

an audience of 500 people or fewer but will remain on the face of the licence 

for when these activities may take place under other circumstances.  

 

3.22 Where a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music on 

relevant licensed premises is not licensable, it remains possible for anyone 

to apply for a review of a licence if there are appropriate grounds to do so.  

 
Proportionality  

 

3.23 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, 

type, location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises 

concerned. Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and 

standardised conditions which ignore these individual aspects should be 

avoided. For example, conditions should not be used to implement a general 

policy in a given area such as the use of CCTV, polycarbonate drinking 

vessels or identity scanners where they would not be appropriate to the 

specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the 

prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night 

refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake 

right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or 

requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check 

is retained at the licensed premises. Licensing authorities and other 

responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect costs that can arise 

because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events that are 

valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. 

Page 16



Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose 

are only those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives. 

 
3.24 working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment might 

include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work checks on 

all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any 

document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed 

premises. Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive 

to the indirect costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a 

deterrent to holding events that are valuable to the community or for the funding 

of good and important causes. Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that 

any conditions they impose are only those which are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 

4. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision 
 
4.1 Any decision made by the Licensing Sub-Committee does not have effect until: 
 

 the end of the period given for appealing against the decision; or 

 if the decision is appealed, until the appeal is disposed of. 

 
4.2 An appeal may be lodged by either the applicant or a party to the hearing that 

has made a relevant representation. 
 

4.3 Parties to the hearing must be informed of the decision within 5 working days of 
the hearing (or within 5 working days from the last day of the hearing if it takes 
place over multiple days). 

 
 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this application.   

 

5.2 However, additional costs may be incurred should the matter go to appeal.  In 

such an eventuality it may not be possible to recover all of the costs incurred.  

The impact of these additional costs (if any) will therefore need to be met from 

within existing revenue budgets.  

 
6. Legal Advice and Implications  
 
6.1 A Council Solicitor will be in attendance at the hearing to provide appropriate 

legal advice to the Sub-Committee in relation to specific aspects of the 

application / hearing, however the advice below is generally applicable to all 

applications. 

 

Page 17



6.2 Hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 operate under the Licensing Act 2003 

(Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as amended). 

 
6.3 In accordance with Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 

Regulations 2005, the authority may take into account documentary or other 

information produced by a party in support of their application, representations 

or notice either before the hearing or, with the consent of all parties, at the 

hearing. 

 

6.4 The Panel may accept hearsay evidence and it will be a matter for the Sub-

Committee to attach what weight to it that they consider appropriate. Hearsay 

evidence is evidence of something that a witness neither saw nor heard but has 

heard or read about. 

 

6.5 The Secretary of State’s guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 is provided to 

licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their functions under the 

2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing appeals 

against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit 

of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. 

It is a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of 

licensing powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal 

treatment and proportionality. 

 

6.6 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing 

authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 

section 182. The guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that 

extent. However, the guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set 

of circumstances that may arise and, as long as licensing authorities have 

properly understood this guidance, they may depart from it if they have good 

reason to do so and can provide full reasons. 

 

6.7 In addition to the above, members are reminded that all decisions must be taken 

in accordance with the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy (adopted 3rd June 

2020). 

 

6.8 Departure from the guidance and / or Statement of Licensing Policy could give 

rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons given will then be a key 

consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness and merits of any 

decision taken. 

 

 
7. Risks and Mitigation 
 
7.1 The statutory requirements in relation to the consideration of this application are 

detailed in this report.  It is essential that the Sub-Committee act in accordance 
with these statutory provisions and take account of statutory guidance. 

Page 18



 
7.2 Failure to do this exposes the Council to significant risk of legal challenge, the 

consequences of which could result in financial and / or reputational damage to 
the Council. 

 

7.3 Members are therefore urged to fully consider the information in this report when 
making a decision regarding this application, and to ensure that any decision 
made is justifiable, proportionate, and based on the promotion of one or more of 
the Licensing Objectives. 
 

7.4 Council officers are present at the meeting today and can provide additional 
advice to members of the Sub-Committee should this be required.  In addition, a 
copy of the statutory guidance and Statement of Licensing Policy is available for 
members to review should they wish to do so.  

 
 
8. Accountable Officer(s) 

 
Diane Kraus, Principal Licensing Officer, Community Safety and Street Scene 
 
 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Appendix 1 
Orzo, 2/2a Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG  
 
 

P
age 21



Appendix 1 
Orzo, 2/2a Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG  
 

 

P
age 22



Appendix 1 
Orzo, 2/2a Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG  
 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



Appendix 2 
 

 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 26



1 

Rotherham Council 

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are completing this 
form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes 
and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I/We  Orzo Rotherham Ltd 
         (Insert name(s) of applicant)  
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in 

Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing 

authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Part 1 – Premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Orzo, 

2/2a Doncaster Gate, 

Post town 
Rotherham, 

Postcode S65 1DJ 

Telephone number at premises (if any) 

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £ 11,500   (£180 paid) 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate 

a) an individual or individuals * please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual * 

i as a limited company/limited liability partnership X please complete section (B) 

ii as a partnership (other than limited liability) please complete section (B) 

iii as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B) 

iv other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B) 

c) a recognised club please complete section (B) 

d) a charity please complete section (B) 

e) the proprietor of an educational establishment please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body please complete section (B) 

APPENDIX 3Page 27



2 

g) 

ga) 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the Care 
Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an independent 

hospital in Wales 

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of 
the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the 

meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in 
England 

please complete section (B) 

please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in England 
and Wales 

please complete section (B) 

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one box below):

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the premises for 

licensable activities; or 
X 

I am making the application pursuant to a 

statutory function or 

a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative 

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr 
Mrs 

Miss  Ms 
Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 

Surname First names 

Date of birth:  I am 18 years old or over X Please tick yes 

Nationality:   

Current residential address if 
different from premises address 

Post town Postcode 

Daytime contact telephone number 

E-mail address

(optional)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable) 

Mr Mrs Miss  Ms 
Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 

Surname First names 

Date of birth   I am 18 years old or over Please tick yes 

Nationality 

Current postal address if different 

from premises address 

Post town Postcode 

Daytime contact telephone number 

Page 28



3 

E-mail address

(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where appropriate please give any 

registered number.  In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), 

please give the name and address of each party concerned. 

Name  Orzo Rotherham Ltd 

Address 

2 Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG 

Registered number (where applicable) 

14447327 

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.) 

Limited Company 

Telephone number (if any) 

07425702770 

E-mail address (optional) 

orzoresaurant2@gmail.com 

Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start?  

DD M YYY 

0 9 1 2 2 0 2  2 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you 
want it to end? 

DD M YYYY 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 

Established 3 Storey restaurant situated in town centre.  

On the ground floor, the premises has a large open area for seating (for approximately  40 
Covers ), a bar and a snug area. There is also a smaller kitchen area to the rear. 

Up the first flight of stairs ( mezzanine area) there is a function room which can seat up to 40 
covers and up a further flight of stairs up to a second dining area that can accommodate up to 
80 people. Disabled toilets are located on the ground floor and male and female toilets are 
situated on the first floor. 

There is also a lift operating directly from the ground to the first floor. 

Page 29



4 

The restaurant opening times are 11am – 10pm every day unless there is a pre-booked event 

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time, 
please state the number expected to attend. 

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) 
Please tick all that 
apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) 

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) 

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) 

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D) 

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) X 

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) X 

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) 

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) 
(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I) X 

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) X 

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 30

The application was amended on 13th December 2022 so as to remove the highlighted text.



5 

A

Plays 

Standard days and timings 

(please read guidance note 
7) 

Will the performance of a play take place indoors 

or outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 3)  

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Day Start Finish Both 

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Tue 

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read guidance 
note 5) 

Thur 

Fri Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column on 

the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

Sat 

Sun 

Page 31



6 

B 

Films 

Standard days and timings 

(please read guidance note 
7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or 

outdoors or both – please tick (please read guidance 

note 3) 

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Day Start Finish Both 

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Tue 

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read 
guidance note 5) 

Thur 

Fri Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on the 

left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

Sat 

Sun 

Page 32



7 

C 

Indoor sporting events  

Standard days and timings 

(please read guidance note 
7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read 
guidance note 5) 

Wed 

Thur Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for indoor 

sporting events at different times to those listed in the column on the left, 

please list (please read guidance note 6) 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

Page 33



8 

D 

Boxing or wrestling 

entertainments  

Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance note 
7) 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take 

place indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)  

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Day Start Finish Both 

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Tue 

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment 
(please read guidance note 5) 

Thur 

Fri Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for boxing 

or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column 

on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

Sat 

Sun 

Page 34



9 

E 

Live music 

Standard days and timings 

(please read guidance note 
7) 

Will the performance of live music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 

read guidance note 3)  

Indoors x 

Outdoors 

Day Start Finish Both 

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Tue 

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please 

read guidance note 5) 

Thur 

Fri Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

performance of live music at different times to those listed in the column 

on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

For pre-booked events on any day from 23.00 to 01.30 

Sat 

Sun 

Page 35

The application was amended on 13th December 2022 so as to remove
 the highlighted text. 



10 

F 

Recorded music 

Standard days and timings 

(please read guidance note 
7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 

read guidance note 3)  

Indoors X 

Outdoors 

Day Start Finish Both 

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Tue 

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music (please 
read guidance note 5) 

Thur 

Fri Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in the column 

on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

For pre-booked events on any day from 23.00 to 02.00 
Sat 

Sun 

Page 36

The application was amended on 13th December 2022 so as to 
remove the highlighted text. 



11 

G 

Performances of dance 

Standard days and timings 

(please read guidance note 
7) 

Will the performance of dance take place indoors 

or outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 3)  

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Day Start Finish Both 

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Tue 

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read 
guidance note 5) 

Thur 

Fri Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column on 

the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

Sat 

Sun 

Page 37



12 

H 

Anything of a similar 

description to that falling 

within (e), (f) or (g) 

Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance note 

7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing 

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 

outdoors or both – please tick (please read guidance 

note 3) 

Indoors 

Mon Outdoors 

Both 

Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Wed 

Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description 

to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read guidance note 5) 

Fri 

Sat Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) 

at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list 
(please read guidance note 6) 

Sun 

Page 38



13 

I 

Late night refreshment 

Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance note 
7) 

Will the provision of late night refreshment take 

place indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

Indoors X 

Outdoors X 

Day Start Finish Both X 

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Tue 

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment 

(please read guidance note 5) 

Thur 

Fri Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

For pre-booked events on any day from 23.00 to 02.00 
Sat 

Sun 

Page 39

Highlight

The application was amended on 13th December 2022 so as to 
remove the highlighted text. 



14 

J 

Supply of alcohol 

Standard days and timings 

(please read guidance note 
7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption – 

please tick (please read guidance note 8)  
On the 
premises 

X 

Off the 
premises 

Day Start Finish Both 

Mon 11.00 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read 
guidance note 5) 

21.30 

Tue 11.00 

21.30 

Wed 11.00 

21.30 

Thur 11.00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the 

left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

For pre-booked events on any day from 21.30 to 01.30 

21.30 

Fri 11.00 

21.30 

Sat 11.00 

21.30 

Sun 11.00 

21.30 

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated 

premises supervisor   (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of 

the form): 

Name    Miss Kvetoslava Janova 

Date of birth:  11.08.2003  Place of birth:    Kosice, Slovakia   Nationality:  Slovakian

Address    

Postcode S65 1PJ 

Personal licence number (if known) 

TBA 

Issuing licensing authority (if known) 

Rotherham 

Page 40

The application was amended on 13th December 2022 so as to 
remove the highlighted text. 



15 

K 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters 

ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read 
guidance note 9). 

None 

L 

Hours premises are open 

to the public 

Standard days and timings 

(please read guidance note 
7) 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 11.00 

22.00 

Tue 11.00 

22.00 

Wed 11.00 

22.00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be open to the 

public at different times from those listed in the column on the left, 

please list (please read guidance note 6) 

The hour for the closure of the premises will be 02.00 for 

pre-booked events on any day. 

Thur 11.00 

22.00 

Fri 11.00 

22.00 

Sat 11.00 

22.00 

Sun 11.00 

22.00 

Page 41

The application was amended on 13th December 2022 so as to 
remove the highlighted text. 



16 

M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)

1. CCTV

1.1   The premises shall install and maintain a CCTV system Cameras will be 

positioned on all floors, at the front exterior and all entrance and exit doors. 

1.2 . The CCTV system shall have sufficient hard drive storage capacity to store 

a minimum of 31 days and to continually record when the premises is open 

for licensable activities. 

1.3   The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition 

images and a clear head and shoulders image of every person entering 

the premises at each entrance point.   

1.4   A CCTV log will be completed on a weekly basis to record all elements of 

the CCTV System is maintained in good working order and recordings date 

and time stamped.  

1.5  Only nominated staff shall be trained in the operation of the CCTV system 

to ensure rapid data retrieval & downloads of footage can be provided to the 

Police & the Local Authority Officer upon reasonable request in accordance 

with the Data Protection Act.  

1.6 In the event of a failure of the CCTV system for any reason, a record of the 

failure will be recorded in the premises Incident log and immediate steps will 

be made to rectify the problem.   

1.7 The DPS will provide training to staff in relation to alcohol sales in relation to 

the restrictions of 16 & 17 year old(s).  

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

2. Incident / Refusals Register

2.1   An incident log shall be kept at the premises. Log records will be retained 

for a period of 12 months from the date it occurred. It will be made 

immediately available on request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by 

section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003), an authorised trading standards officer 

or the police, and must record the following; 

2.2  All crimes reported to the premises (where relevant to the licensing 

objectives)  

2.3  Any incidents of disorder on the premises or within the direct vicinity. 

Page 42



17 

3. A written register of refusals will be operated. Such records shall be kept for

a period of 12 months and the contents of the log book will be made

available for inspection to Local Authority officers and the police.

4.1 For any pre booked events door supervisors registered with the SIA 

qualifications will be employed on such times and ratios following a risk 

assessment for each particular event. Such numbers will be sufficient and 

capable of controlling the customers on the venue.  

4.2  All door supervisors will complete on the first engagement an in-house 

registration form. This form will be retained on the premises for a minimum of 12 

months.  

4.3  All door supervisors will be easily identifiable by their outer clothing and 

their badges will be clearly visible at all times.  

4.4  The premises licence holder will operate a written Dispersal Policy whereby 

at the end of all events, the door supervisors (if employed) or a senior member 

of staff or both will observe the exterior of the premises to assist in the smooth 

dispersal of all customers from the venue to encourage customers to leave the 

area quickly, quietly and to help to disperse people gathering outside.   

5. When the designated premises supervisor is not on duty, a contact

telephone number will be available at all times.

6. All alcohol including spirits will be stored and sold behind the bar(s).

7. There will be employed when required enough staff to collect glasses and

bottles from around the premises during the event and bottle bins will be

placed around the premises if necessary, depending on the event taking

place.

8. A written alcohol register containing all the names of all persons who are

authorised to serve/sell alcohol on the premises will be completed and kept at

the premises for a minimum of 12 months

c) Public safety

9. All free-flowing alcoholic drinks will be dispensed into polycarbonate plastic

glasses or shatterproof glass for consumption by customers.

10. No customers apparently carrying open bottles upon entry shall not be

admitted to the premises or any times the premises are open to the public.

11. Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premises in open

containers save for consumption in any external area provided for that

purpose.

Page 43



18 

12. At least one door supervisor will be positioned near any stairway to monitor

the customers safely during a large event.

13. All lighting both internal and external will be of sufficient illumination for

customers to safely navigate the building.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

14. Prominent, clear and legible signage shall be displayed at the entrance

and  exit of the premises requesting the public to respect the needs of local

residents  and to leave the premises and the area quickly and quietly. ( Quiet

Notice).

15. The Management will provide a free telephone service for all non residents

and will have an agreement with a minimum of a local taxi companies that will

agree to certain ‘quiet’ conditions when collecting customers at the end of the

evening. These quiet conditions will ensure that all taxis vehicles will make the

minimum noise possible and encourage customers to leave quickly and quietly.

16. All customers will be encouraged to pre-book their taxi and to wait for their

taxi inside the restaurant.

17. The Management will operate a Noise Assessment log book when any pre

booked function is taking place and will endeavour to reduce the noise to an

inaudible level at the nearest residence.

18. The Management will ensure that no extractor fan or exterior lighting will

cause a nuisance to any local residence

19. The Management will operate an open-door policy whereby any nearby

resident will be encouraged to report any matters of concern they have with the

premises, regarding noise and noise nuisance.

20. All trade waste will be stored in lidded industrial bins. No glass bottles / waste

will be disposed of between 20.00 and 08.00 on any day.

21. All deliveries and collections of trade waste will only be carried out between

08.00 and 20.00 on weekdays

e) The protection of children from harm

Page 44



19 

22. When an event is to be held that is likely to attract under 18’s, the premises

licence holder will install, operate and maintain an identification and age

verification system, for example, coloured wrist bands

23. Proxy signs will be fitted near to all alcohol P.O.S positions warning people

not to buy alcohol for children.

24. Challenge 25

24.1   The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 policy. Such policy shall be 

written down and kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on 

demand of the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of 

the licensing act 2003) or an authorised trading standards officer the local 

authority/council.  

24.2  All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in Challenge 25. 

Training records shall be kept on the premises and produced to the police or 

an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the licensing act 2003) or 

an authorised trading standards officer of the local authority/council on 

demand 

24.3    Prominent, clear and legible Challenge 25 signage shall also be 

displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location 

behind any counter advertising the scheme operated. 

Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. X 

I have enclosed the plan of the premises. X 

I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where 

applicable.                                                                                              Electronic application 

I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be designated premises 

supervisor, if applicable. 
X 

I understand that I must now advertise my application. X 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be 

rejected. 

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not a limited 

liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I have included 
documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note 15). 

X 

X 

It is an offence, under section 158 of the licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection 

with this application. Those who make a false statement may be liable on summary conviction to a fine of 

any amount.   

Page 45



20 

It is an offence under section 24b of the immigration act 1971 for a person to work when they know, or 

have reasonable cause to believe, that they are disqualified from doing so by reason of their immigration 

status. Those who employ an adult without leave or who is subject to conditions as to employment will be 

liable to a civil penalty under section 15 of the immigration, asylum and nationality act 2006 and 

pursuant to section 21 of the same act, will be committing an offence where they do so in the knowledge, 

or with reasonable cause to believe, that the employee is disqualified 

Part 4 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 11) 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 12).  If 

signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.  

Declaration 

• [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which

is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I am not entitled to be issued
with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and  work in the UK (or if I
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the

carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

• The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is
not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work relating to a

licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of  entitlement to
work, if appropriate (please see note 15)

Signature 

 

Date   08th November 2022 

Capacity       Agent on behalf of the applicant 

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent 

(please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity. 

Signature 

Date 

Capacity 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this 
application (please read guidance note 14) 

Tony Clarke 

JMC Licensing Consultants,  

540 Antrim Road 

Post town Belfast Postcode BT15 5GJ 

Telephone number (if any) 07388 441720 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 

  securelicenses@gmail.com 

Page 46



Appendix 4 

REPRESENTATION IN RESPECT OF ORZO, 2 DONCASTER GATE, 

ROTHERHAM S65 1DJ. 

 

I am a Licensing Enforcement Officer employed by Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 

Council. On behalf of the Licensing Authority, carrying out its functions as a 

Responsible Authority, I am making representation to the application for the grant of 

a premises licence made in respect of a premises now known as Orzo (and 

previously known as La Orza), which is located at 2 Doncaster Gate, Rotherham. 

Background  

The premises is situated on the corner of Wellgate and Doncaster Gate, as a result 

of its central location, this affords easy access to the majority of Rotherham Town 

Centre, including All Saints Square.  

The premises has historically been utilised for a number of different business types, 

including both licensed and retail premises. 

In July 2022 the Premises Licence issued in respect of the premises was suspended 

due to the failure of the then licence holder to pay the required annual licence fee. 

This suspension took effect from the 7th of July 2022 and as a result any new venture 

would have to apply for a new licence in order to operate lawfully. 

It became apparent in August 2022 that the premises was being used to hold events 

where considerable amounts of alcohol was being consumed. These events were 

held from early afternoon and through the night until the next morning, this was 

leading to incidents of disorder involving customers who had frequented the 

premises. This culminated in an incident which occurred on the 13th of August 2022 

when customers who had attended the premises were involved in a fight in nearby 

All Saints Square during which a male received serious head injuries and was 

conveyed to Rotherham District General Hospital, where he received treatment.  

These events were being held without a licence and at this time it was unclear who 

was behind the organisation of the events. 

On the 15th of August a report was submitted by Rotherham Council Licensing, 

which outlined the unlicensed activities occurring at the premises and stated that the 

identity of the proprietor was unknown. This report also outlined the fact that both 

police officers and licensing officers had been obstructed and were unable to either 

gain access to the property or speak to the persons operating the premises.   

 

 

Page 47



Appendix 4 

On the 21st of August 2022 Rotherham Council received a complaint from a local 

resident who stated that the noise emanating from the premises was causing a 

disturbance throughout the local area. This resident also stated that during a 

conversation with a male who had access to the premises, it was made clear to them 

that the premises held a licence to sell alcohol and play music until 7am. This was 

untrue as the premises did not have the benefit of a licence as of this date.  

Other residents have also stated that they have felt intimidated when they have 

raised concerns about the operation of the premises directly with a man claiming to 

be in charge.     

On the 28th of August 2022 Rotherham Council received another complaint 

concerning the premises and its activities, again describing music played to a high 

volume and customers leaving in the early hours of the morning in a loud and 

disorderly manner.  

The complainants made reference to children being present at the unlicensed 

events.  

On the 30th of August 2022 the Council’s Principal Licensing Officer conducted an 

interview with Mr Josef Gazi, who had been identified as the person responsible for 

the provision of the unlicensed activity at the premises.. During this interview Mr Gazi 

admitted that he did not have the required licence to operate but refused to state 

whether he would cease operating. Mr Gazi stated that he held events at the 

premises which customers paid a flat fee at the door and were then provided with 

alcohol and food, which he purchased from a local cash and carry. Mr Gazi 

explained that customers were encouraged to bring their own alcohol to the 

premises, which could be consumed on site. At the end of this interview Mr Gazi was 

informed that consideration would be given to the instigation of legal proceedings if 

he continued to operate without a licence.  

Mr Gazi was issued with a personal licence on the 18th of August 2022. 

In September 2022 Mr Gazi made an application for the grant of a premises licence 

in respect of the premises. However, this application was rejected as the plan 

submitted with the application did not show the layout of the premises and the 

operating schedule do not reflect the intended use of the premises.  

The application under consideration 

This application is made in the name of Orzo Rotherham Limited. A search of the 

Company House shows that this is a newly formed company with one director, Mr 

Josef Gazi.  

Whilst the application implies operating hours to 9.30pm in reality it seeks consent to 

provide licensable activities on unlimited occasions until 1.30am in the morning.  

Page 48



Appendix 4 

Representations  

Representations are made on the grounds that the grant of the application would 

undermine the Licensing Objectives, which are: 

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and  

 The Protection of Children from Harm.   

 

Mr Gazi is the sole director of the applicant company and evidence supports the fact 

that he has knowingly operated the premises without the benefit of a Premises 

Licence. In interview with Council officers Mr Gazi openly admitted opening on 

weekends until 7am. During this interview Mr Gazi stated the next event was a 17th 

birthday party and wouldn’t commit to cancelling the event.  

Whilst unlawful events have been held at the premises there has been instances of 

violence and disorder involving customers who has attended events. Police 

intelligence states “there was a serious incident on Wellgate which stemmed from 

this location”. It also indicates that large numbers of people have been permitted to 

congregate on the pavement outside of the premises. 

It is likely that children have been present at the events. This is supported by 

information provided by Mr Gazi in person, when he told officer that he planned to 

host a birthday party for a 17 year old, and Police intelligence which indicates 

children as young as 6 years old were seen attending an event held at the premises 

on 13th August 2022.  

The unlawful operation of the premises has been the cause of significant nuisance to 

local residents. This is a fact as the Council’s has served Noise Abatement Notice on 

Mr Gazi.  

When residents attempted to raise their legitimate concerns with Mr Gazi his 

response was to tell them that he had a licence to operate. In addition, it is alleged 

that his manner in doing so was intimidating.  

The unlawful events have been poorly managed and the application under 

consideration nominates a 19 year old to be in charge of the day to day management 

of the premises.  

Throughout his dealings with the Council Mr Gazi has demonstrated a lack of 

cooperation and also, more worryingly, a lack of honesty. He has also demonstrated 

an inability to operate the premises in a manner that upholds the licensing 

objectives. As the sole director of the applicant company Mr Gazi will have overall 

control of the premises. 

 

Page 49



Appendix 4 

Recommendation  

The recommendation is that the application is refused in its entirety. 

Should the Sub Committee be minded to grant a licence it is recommended that the  

part of the application that seeks permission to  provide licensable activities on 

unlimited occasions for private event until 1.30am in the morning is refused. There is 

a system in place under the service of a Temporary Event Notice that allows for the 

occasional extension of hours.  

06.12.22 

Lee Kerry 

Licensing Enforcement Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



Appendix 4 

 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council,  
Riverside House,  
Main Street,  
Rotherham,  
S60 1AE 

Date: 1st December 2022  

           Licensing Act 2003 

Objection to the application for a new premise licence for 

La Orza Italian Restaurant, 2 Doncaster Gate, Rotherham 

On behalf of the Chief Constable of South Yorkshire Police, an objection is being made in 
relation to the above application.  
 
The grounds of objection are based on the potential impact on the promotion of the 
licensing Objectives - Crime and Disorder & Public Nuisance & Public Safety 

The premise was originally granted a licence in January 2021, but appeared to never open 
for trading, the premise licence then lapsed on 7th July 2022, since that date the premise 
opened with Mr Josef Gazi as the owner, trading without a licence, during this time there 
was a serious assault which was associated to the venue, following the incident Mr Gazi was 
interviewed where he admitted trading without a licence.  
 
The Company listed on the application as the premise licence holder has a direct link to Mr 
Gazi, (him being the director of the company). Although the trading hours have significantly 
reduced on the current application, the applicant has added a non-standard timing 
condition which states “the premise can open for pre-booked events on any day up to 
02:00hrs” this could potentially allow the premise to open every day until 02:00hrs should 
they wish to do so, which could increase the potential for crime and disorder with in the 
area the premise is situated, based on the previous issues detailed above. 
 
As a result South Yorkshire Police have no confidence that the premise will run within the 
guidelines set out in the Licensing act and uphold the four licensing objectives.  
 
Yours faithfully,  
For and on behalf of  
Chief Constable, South Yorkshire Police  
 
Tracey Klein 
Licensing Assistant 
South Yorkshire Police  
Liquor Licensing Department 
Moss Way Police Station 
Moss Way 
Sheffield S20 7XX 

Page 51



Appendix 4 

Representation in respect of Premises Licence:  

ORZO, 2 DONCASTER GATE, ROTHERHAM S65 1DJ 

 

Summary of Facts known by our service in relation to this matter: 

On the 22nd August 2022 Environmental Health and Community Protection Unit 

service received two complaints and these were given reference numbers B34715 

and B34735 on the council’s system. These complaints were in relation to noise 

emanating from the premises.  

On the 22nd August 2022 case officer, Enforcement Officer Andrew Woodhouse 

emailed Keeley Ladlow making RMBC Licencing aware that we had received 

complaints about loud music. Her reply stated that the premises should not be 

operating any licensable activities due to no premises licence in place. 

On the 26th August 2022 Enforcement Officer Paul Jones and Police Community 

Support Officer Hayley Laurie observed the premises playing loud music with door 

staff out front and around 15 young people (underage) outside the premises.  

On the 26th August 2022 at 22:54 Paul Jones received a call whilst on Out of Hours 

from a local resident complaining about the loud music coming from ORZO. 

On the 27th August 2022 Mr Woodhouse received a email from Craig Cornwall with a 

image attached containing Personal Licence Holder details which were JOZEF GAZI 

of 3 Far Crescent, Rotherham, S65 2RS. 

On the 31st August 2022 Mr Woodhouse confirmed JOZEF GAZI at 3 Far Crescent, 

Rotherham by means of a council tax check to be the responsible party for the 

premises.  

On the 31st August 2022 Mr Woodhouse issued an Abatement Notice under the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990 Section 80 after being satisfied of the likely 

occurrence of a statutory nuisance under section 79[1] [G] to JOZEF GAZI of 3 Far 

Crescent, Rotherham, S65 2RS. 

On the 1st September Mr Woodhouse spoke with JOZEF GAZI face to face in 

Riverside House reception and he provide me with owner details: ARKAN ALI 

AHMED of 95 Andover Street, Sheffield, S3 9EJ. 

Assessment & Recommendation: 

Based on the potential for nuisance to be caused to nearby residential receptors, in 

particular with the application outlining closing times of up to 02:00am on a 

potentially unlimited basis, which would significantly increase the potential for 

nuisance and associated anti-social behaviour, it is recommended that the 

application in its current form is refused.  

Craig Cornwall, Community Protection Manager  Dated: 7 December 2022  

Page 52



Appendix 4 

 
 
From: Cllr Rose McNeely <CllrRose.McNeely@rotherham.gov.uk>  
Sent: 24 November 2022 12:40 
To: Diane Kraus <Diane.Kraus@rotherham.gov.uk>; Keeley Ladlow 
<Keeley.Ladlow@rotherham.gov.uk>; Alan Pogorzelec <Alan.Pogorzelec@rotherham.gov.uk> 
Cc: Cllr Taiba Yasseen <Taiba.Yasseen@rotherham.gov.uk>; Cllr Saghir Alam 
<CllrSaghir.Alam@rotherham.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: New Licence application for Orza  
 
 
Hello to whom this may concern. 
 
I wish to object to the application submitted by ‘Orza’ as the Ward Councillor and list my reasons 
below in order of the 4 Licensing Objectives. 
 
Objective 1, The prevention of crime and disorder 
Due to its close proximity to the Town Centre. 
 
Objective 2, Public Safety 
Due to its close proximity to the Town Centre and residential properties. 
 
Objective 3, The prevention of public nuisance. 
Due to its close proximity to the Town Centre and the Theatre and residential properties. 
 
Objective 4, The protection of children from harm. 
Due to its close proximity to the theatre and the University and residential properties. 
 
I also have concerns regarding the exemption it would impose if all events were pre booked. 
 
Kind Regards 
Councillor Rose McNeely 
Boston Castle Councillor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



Appendix 4 

 
 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Xuyen Ninh <ninhxuyen2000@yahoo.com>  
Sent: 09 November 2022 23:10 
To: Licensing <Licensing@rotherham.gov.uk> 
Subject: Reject 2a Doncaster Orza 
 
 
Reject Application for grant of a Premises Licence -Orza , 2a Doncaster Gate , Rotherham Gate , 
Rotherham,S65 1DJ 
 
Dear Sir 
 
I am Xuyen Kim Ninh  , I am living in flat 3 Wellgate Rotherham South Yorkshire S602LT My flat next 
the door with Orza . I read the application form apply for sale the alcohol between 11:00 hour to 
21:30 hours and closing at 22:00 hour and in the note live music and amplified live music may be 
from 08:00 and 23:00 any day I am disagree because  
 

1. On the day it will make effect with my Business so loader and very noisy, my customer 
won’t come to my shop for nails done any more they feel headaches  
 
2. I also live in flat 3 Wellgate, the live music so noisy I can not sleep, that way to kill me . I 
need to work for the next day 
 

Another way they apply for unlimited occasions for “ pre booked” event , from paragraph a to e , 
that is absolutely can not accepted, I live in flat next their door, it is very very noisy , if you are a me , 
can you sleep next the door with open a music so noisy , I am disagree . 
 
 I hope you will make fair enough for a person is me live next their door Please do not hesitate me  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



Appendix 4 

 

 

From: Laura Clarkson <sixgoalwonder@yahoo.com>  

Sent: 22 November 2022 17:25 

To: Diane Kraus Diane.Kraus@rotherham.gov.uk 

Hi Diane, 

 

I would like to strongly oppose the license application made by Orzo on Doncaster Gate in 

Rotherham town centre. 

 

Throughout the summer, the owners were regularly hosting parties there or opening illegally till 

often 6am in the morning. Sometimes people spilled out into the street. They were drinking and 

smoking on the street and fighting. They played music extremely loudly which could be heard from 

the flats I live in at The Cinema House on Doncaster Gate. (S65 1AZ). 

 

I collected some evidence of the problems we were having and on one occasion I was walking past 

with my partner and took some pictures of the venue open. A man got out of a car outside and 

started threatening me saying “I’ve got a fuckin license, what’s your problem, fuck off” we 

immediately ran away from him and called the police. They have been trying to find this man with 

the car registration we gave them but have not managed too yet. The incident number with South 

Yorkshire police is 14/133477/22. 

 

The people that drink at this place are very aggressive and it is intimidating to walk past when they 

are there. They also race their cars up and down Wellgate and Doncaster Gate. We captured one 

incident on camera and they nearly crashed into a taxi. 

 

I am going to email you separately the evidence I have of the noise levels over the summer when I 

presume they didn’t have a license to sell alcohol or play live music. I will also email pictures of the 

man in the car who threatened us and also the car racing they do.  

More recently, I have seen a young family coming out of the premises. A few weeks ago, I was 

walking into town on two separate occasions on a weekday afternoon and a young looking Eastern 

European woman came out of the black doors that lead to the back of the property on Doncaster 

Gate. She had 4 children with her who looked a range of ages from maybe 7-11? Both of these days 

were school days and times you would expect children to be in school. There are often lights on now 

on the third floor of the building when I have been walking home from work in the evening so it 

seems as though they or someone is living there?  

I will now send some separate emails with the photo/video evidence I have as it won’t let me put it 

all in one email.  

 

If you need anymore information, please let me know. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Page 55

mailto:Diane.Kraus@rotherham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56


	Agenda
	3 Consideration of an application made by Orzo Rotherham Ltd (in accordance with s.17 of the Licensing Act 2003) for the grant of a Premises Licence in respect of the premises known as Orza situated at 2/2a Doncaster Gate, Rotherham, S65 1DG
	2. Appendix 1
	3. Appendix 2
	4. Appendix 3
	5. Appendix 4




